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C ERTIFIED PUBLIC A CCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report 

August 8, 2011 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Ouray County, Colorado 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, 
each major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of Ouray County, Colorado, 
as of and for the year ended December 31 , 2010, which collectively comprise the County's 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are 
the responsibility of County's, management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on 
these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining , on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and Significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion , the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information for the Ouray County, Colorado, as of 
December 31 , 2010, and the respective changes in financial position , where applicable, 
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America . 

Management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 14 is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements but is supplementary information requ ired by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquires of management regarding the methods of measurement and 
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the 
information and express no opinion on it. 

Coll iee P. Blair, Jr., CPA, CFE 
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements. The budgetary 
comparisons information for the major funds on page 41 through 44 is not a required part of 
the basic financial statements but is required supplementary information required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements and supplementary schedules on pages 45-59 are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
The required supplementary information, other than management's discussion and analysis, 
and the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and supplementary 
schedules, and local highway financial report have been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

CJ3(air ana Associates, P. C. 
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OURAY COUNTY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 20 I 0 

As management of Ouray County (the "County"), we offer readers of the County ' s basic financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fi scal 
year ended December 3 1, 20 I O. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 
conjunction with additional in formation provided in the financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The County's assets exceeded its liabilities by $ 7,020,028 (i .e. net assets) as of December 
31, 20 I 0, an increase of $ 488,830 in comparison to the prior year. 

• Governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $ 2,968,095, an increase of 
$ 523 ,799 in comparison with the prior year. 

• The County's fund balance for the General Fund was $ 677,017, an increase of $ 214,103 in 
comparison to the prior year. 

• Total long-term liabi lities decreased by $ 164,536 during the 2010 fiscal year, with no new 
debt issued. 

• General property tax , sales tax, and other tax totaled $ 3,932,057, or 62% of general 
revenues. 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This di scussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic financial 
statements. The basic statements are comprised of three components: \) government-wide financial 
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. 

Govemment-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
County's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all the County's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two being reported as net assets. Over time, the increases or decreases in net 
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County's net assets changed during 
the most recent fi scal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses reported in this statement for some items will result in cash flows in future 
periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused personal time). 
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The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (Governmental Activities) from other functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (Business­
type Activities). The Governmental Activities of the County include general government, judicial, 
public safety, health and welfare, public works, and recreation and culture. 

FUlld Fillallcial Statemellts 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain contro l over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The County's funds can be divided into three 
categories: Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds and Fiduciary Funds. 

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentiall y the same fu nctions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on short-term 
inflows and oulf/ows of 5pendable resources, as we ll as on balances of spendable resources available at 
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's shott-term 
financing requirements. The accounting method is called modified accrual accounting. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental activities in the 
governmental fimds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government­
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
government's short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
governmenta l fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The County maintains four major government funds, the General, Road and Bridge, Public Health and 
the Social Services Funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet 
and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for 
those funds. 

Fiduciary Funds-The County maintains one type of fiduciary fund, the County Treasurer's Agency 
Fund. 

Notes to Fillallcial Statemellts 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a fu ll understanding of the data provided in 
the financial statements. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Net Assets 
As noted previously, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the County' s financia l 
position. For the year ended December 3 1, 20 I 0, the County ' s combined assets exceeded liabi lities by $ 
7,020,028. Of this amount, $ 2,625,997 is unrestricted and avai lable to meet the County's ongoing 
financ ial obligations. 

By far the largest portion of net assets is the investment in capital assets (net of related debt) of 
$4,2 19,150 (60% of net assets). This amount reflects the investment in all capital assets (e.g. 
infrastructure, land, buildings, and equipment) less any re lated debt used to acquire those assets that are 
sti ll outstanding. These capital assets are used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets 
are not avai lable for future spending. Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay th is debt must be provided from other sources since 
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabi lities. 

The fo llowing table summarizes the County's governmental activities net assets for 20 I 0: 

Assets 
Current and other assets 
Capital assets 

Totat assets 

Current Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 

Compensated absences 
Loans payable 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Investment in capital assets, 

net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

2010 

6,055,029 
4,606,733 

10,661,762 

3,086,934 

167,217 
387,583 

3,641,734 

4,219, 150 
174,881 

2,625,997 
7,020,028 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2009 

5,501,279 
4,763,350 

10,264,629 

3,056,983 

124,329 
552, 11 9 

3,733,431 

4,21 1,231 
174,881 

2,145,086 
6,531,198 

An additional portion of net assets, $ 174,881 , represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets, $ 2,625,997 
(37% of net assets), may be used to meet the government ' s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
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Change in Net Assets 

Governmenta l activities increase the County' s net assets by $ 488,830 in 20 10. 

Governmental 
Activities 

2010 2009 
Revenues 
Program revenues 
Charges for seNices $ 787,845 $ 826,544 

Operating grants 771,873 1,850,129 

General Revenues 
Property taxes 3,433,023 2,791,910 

Sales taxes and other 499,034 943,479 

Federal and state 2,038,755 744,535 

Miscellaneous 389,708 268,579 

Totals 7,920,238 7,425,176 

Expenses 

General Government 2,238,810 2,185,631 

Judicial 192,719 194,444 

Public safety 1,170,456 1,317,531 

Health and welfare 1,662,234 1,520,008 

Recreation and culture 211,575 188,444 

Public works 1,955,614 1,704,229 

Total Expenses 7,431,408 7, 110,287 

Increase in net assets 488,830 314,889 

Prior period adjustment (300) 

Beginning 6,531,198 6,216,609 
Ending $ 7,020,028 $ 6,531, 198 
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Governmental Activities 

Revenues by Source-Governmental Activities 

$787,845 

$2,038,755 
$771 ,873 

$499,034 

$3,433,023 

oCharges for 
services 

_ Operating 
grants 

o Property taxes 

o Sales taxes 
and other 

• Federal and 
state 

ID Miscelianeous 

Expenses by Department-Governmental Activities 

$211 

$1,662,234 $1,170,456 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS 

Govern mental funds. The focus of the County's govenunental funds is to provide information on near­
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
County's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure 
of the County's net resources available for spending at the end of the fi scal year. 

As of the end of 201 0, the County 's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $ 
2,968,095, an increase of $ 523,799 in comparison with the prior year. Of the combined ending fund 
balances for all governmental funds 90% of thi s total amount, $ 2,679,917, constitutes unreserved fund 
balance, which is available for appropriation at the County's discretion . The remainder of the fund 
balances are reserved for State constitution mandated emergency reserve, trust funds and inventory. 

The County has four major governmental funds, the General, Road and Bridge, Public Health and Social 
Services Funds. At the end of 20 I 0, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $ 59 1,849. As a 
measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and 
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. The fund balance of the County's General Fund increased 
by $ 214, I 03 during 2010. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
The County budgeted $ 3,598,668 for 2010 expenditures. Actual expenditures were $3,354,333. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
The County's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of December 31,20 I 0, was $ 
4,6,06,733. As required for this year by GASB34, the investment in capital assets includes land, 
bui ldings, building improvements, equipment and furniture and infrastructure assets. 

Long-term Debt 
As of December 31,20 I 0, the County had long-term debt as follows: 

Balance 
Governmental Activities 1/1/2010 Additions Reductions 

Capita l leases 
2006 Ambulance 22.227 22,227 

2006 Dodge Durango 10,920 10,920 

Loboy Trailer 8,495 8,495 

Land Use Building 87,636 42,896 

2008 Toyotal FJ Cruiser 19.893 4 ,688 

Backhoe and 2008 Truck 57,609 18,528 

2008 Toyota l FS Cruise r (2) 32.704 10,482 

Boiler 190,636 17,399 

2009 Ambulance 101.403 24,058 

2009 Silverado Pickup 20,596 4,843 

Total $ 552,119 $ $ 164,536 
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Balance 
12/31/2010 

44,740 

15,205 
39,081 

22,222 
173,237 
77,345 

15,753 

$ 387,583 

Due Within 
One Year 

44,740 
4 ,873 

19,195 
10,896 

16,037 
24,900 

5 ,044 

$ 125,685 



ECONOMIC FACTORS AND FUTURE YEAR'S BUDGET 

Service Levels: 

Calendar year 2010 was a challenging year for local governments due to the economy and the recession, and 
also due to the anticipation of the outcome of the 2010 ballot questions; Amendments 60, 61 and Proposition 101 , 
which were defeated. Ouray County took a proactive approach to the 2010 ballot questions by preparing two draft 
budgets for 2011, the "Doing Business As Usual" Budget (DBU) and the "Impact" Budget. In-depth financial 
analysis was undertaken in order to understand the impacts that might have occurred if these questions had 
passed. Department Heads and Elected Officials were educated on the potential impacts of the ballot questions 
and Ouray County was proactively prepared to operate under a less favorable financial condition . 

The 2011 General Fund budget mirrors the 2010 projected budget reflecting a decrease in building activity and a 
reduction in revenue from building permit activity. Ouray County has been planning ahead and exercising financial 
planning for future years due to the economic condition. The 2009 and 2010 budgets were developed using a 
conservative approach and necessary adjustments were made to departmental operating budgets in advance to 
create departmental efficiencies that have allowed the County to maintain service levels without impacting public 
service provision. This same practice has been followed for the 2011 budget year. 

Revenue Estimates: 

Revenue projections are conservative and are based on the following : 

1. Property tax revenue estimates are based on current assessed valuations provided by the County 
Assessor multiplied by the current mill levy. 

2. Other revenues are based on projected prior year revenues. 
3. Budgeted revenues for 2010 were based for the most part on projected 2009 revenues, considering 

an expectation of continued decreases in building permit revenue and revenue derived from other 
fees. 

4. State revenues from HUTF were conservatively estimated for the 2010 budget year due to continued 
severe State budget constraints; although, revenues received exceeded budgeted estimates. 

5. Budgeted revenues for 2011 were based for the most part on projected 2010 revenues, taking into 
consideration an expectation of reduced construction activity reflecting a reduced , flat revenue base 
similar to 2010 for building permit revenue and revenue derived from other fees. 

6. A close watch is being kept on State revenues due to continued State budget constraints, which may 
reduce our allocations in the future from historic levels. 

7. Budgeted property tax revenues for the 2012 budget year are estimated to decrease by 12.5% based 
upon the County Assessor's preliminary assessed valuations , which are now reflecting the decline in 
values due to the economic downturn over the past couple of years. 

Expenditure Calculations: 

Expenditure calculations are derived annually through the budget process. Department Heads and Elected 
Officials receive their budget packets and budget guidelines in July, and submit their completed budget packets 
and requests to the County Administrator in August. All requests are compiled and prepared by the County 
Administrator for submittal and review by the Board of County Commissioners. Budget workshops are scheduled 
with Elected Officials and Department Heads in September to review the initial draft budget and to help prioritize 
capital expenditures and new position requests. 
In addition to the budget workshops with elected officials and department heads, the Board of County 
Commissioners met with the County Administrator in budget work sessions to discuss and provide direction for 
the continued development of the 2010 budget. Creation of the 2010 budget required additional financial strategy 
due to economic conditions . 
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In preparation of the 2011 budget, two budget workshops were held with Elected Officials and Department Heads, 
one prior to the November 2010 election, and one after the election, to discuss: 1) the proposed impacts of the 
2010 ballot questions that were on the November election ballot (Amendments 60, 61 and Proposition 101 , which 
were defeated.), and 2) the initial results of departmental budget requests after election results were received in 
order to discuss and prioritize personnel and capital requests, and to discuss employee health insurance premium 
increases and other employee benefits. 

Property Valuation: 
The net assessed property valuation for budget year 2010 was $210,386,000. 
The net assessed property valuation for budget year 2011 was $210,799,580. 

Ouray County Mill Levies: 

2010 Mill Levies: 
County General Fund: 
Road and Bridge Fund: 
Social Services Fund: 
EMS Fund: 

Subtotal: 
Recovery of Taxes Abated: 

Total 2010 Mill Levy: 

2011 Mill Levies: 
County General Fund: 
Road and Bridge Fund: 
Social Services Fund: 
EMS Fund: 

Subtotal: 
Recovery of Taxes Abated: 

Total 2011 Mill Levy 

Human Resources: 

9.074 
1.500 

.552 
2.000 

13.126 
---.m2. 
ll.1.38. 

9.074 
1.500 

.552 
2.000 

13.126 
~ 
ll..1.4O. 

Employee development is an ongoing , important element, as is attracting and retaining quality staff. A major 
accomplishment that commenced in 2004 was the development and implementation of Employee Performance 
Evaluations. 

A bonus merit award , not to exceed 1%, was provided to employees in 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 
as a result of performance evaluations. This practice is being continued for the 2011 budget year. 

Through adoption of Resolution 2010-048, the Board will be continuing its practice of evaluating vacated pOSitions 
for 2011 and annually thereafter that may arise as a result of resignation or termination in order to decide if a 
position is an essential position to the organization that should be replaced. The Board began this practice in 
2008 by and through Resolution 2008-055 and has adopted resolutions annually thereafter continuing this 
procedure. The Board believes that it is good fiscal and organizational policy to evaluate positions as they are 
vacated to examine the position need and funding in order to determine if the position is an essential position to 
the organization for various reasons such as health, safety and welfare, and to consider organizational 
efficiencies and effectiveness. 

It is an organizational goal to minimize budgetary increases to the County for health insurance costs, while at the 
same time avoiding exorbitant employee contributions. Ouray County solicited a request for proposal (RFP) for 
employee health insurance benefits in 2009 for the 2010 budget year. After analysis and meeting with the 
Personnel I Employee Benefits Committee, the Board of County Commissioners authorized award to County 
Technical Services, Inc. (CTSI) , for the provision of employee health insurance. Premium rates were maintained 
at the same level for 2010 as they were in 2009; however, premium rates reflected an 8% increase for 2011 ; in 
part, due to changes in the nation-wide health care plan. It is a standing goal to offer preventative medical options 
and education to all employees in order to decrease risk and premium costs in the future. 
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Over the past several years Ouray County has budgeted cost of living adjustments (COLA's) for its employees as 
illustrated below. However, after fully examining the County's budget status in preparation of the 2011 budget, 
and being aware of the economic outlook for 2011 , the County was unable to offer a cost of living adjustment 
(COLA) to its employees in 2011. This is the second year of no COLAs as this same practice was fol lowed in 
2010. 

2006: 3.0% COLA, reflective of an adjusted 3.0% salary matrix, 
2007: 3.0% COLA, reflective of an adjusted 3.0% salary matrix, 
2008: 3.5% COLA, reflective of an adjusted 3.5% salary matrix, 
2009: 2.0% COLA, re flective of an adjusted 2.0% salary matrix, 
2010: 0.0% COLA, with no adjustment to the salary matrix, and 
2011 : 0.0% COLA, with no adjustment to the salary matrix. 

Contributions to Outside Agencies and Programs: 
Funding contribution requests to outside agencies and programs increased for the 2010 budget year in order to 
help fund the services of a Ranger position to patrol the high mountain jeep roads for the health, safety and 
welfare of the Ouray County citizenry and visitors enjoying outdoor summer recreational activities. This same 
policy decision carried through for the 2011 budget year. 

2010 Budget 2011 Budget 

Ouray Historical Society $ 200.00 $ 200.00 
Ridgway Railroad Museum $ 100.00 $ 100.00 
Public Lands Partnership $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 
Tri-County Water Cons. Dist. $ 100.00 $ 100.00 
Fair Board $ 5,500.00 $ 5,500.00 
Yankee Boy Cons. Association (YBCA) $ 0.00 $ 0.00 
High Country Rec. Support $ 4,000.00 $ 4,000.00 
Second Chance Humane Society $ 100.00 $ 100.00 
Voyager Program $ 500.00 $ 500.00 

$ 11,500.00 $ 11,500.00 

Capital and Operating Reserves: 
Allocated reserves have been established by the Board of County Commissioners to reflect three months 
emergency operating reserves for the General Fund, Road and Bridge Fund, and EMS Fund. Additional reserves 
have been established as well for these funds reflecting dedicated reserves, and dollars allocated towards futu re 
capital projects and purchases. Allocation of capital reserves has been an on-going priority for the Board. 

Capital Budget Purchases and Improvements: 
Note: Due to the 2010 ba llot questions (Amendments 60 and 61 and Proposition 101) that were on the 2010 
General Election ballot, the County deferred new lease purchase arrangements for 2010 for capital expenditures 
pending the outcome of the election. For this report, I have provided the capital expenditures approved in the 
2011 budget. 

201 1 Capital Budget Purchases and Improvements: 
General Fund Capital : (020 - 195, 295, 395, 495, 595) 

The General Fund Capital Purchases and Improvements Budget consists of capital purchases, lease purchases 
and capital project items totaling $147,810. 
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Capital Purchase, Lease Purchase and Purchase of Service items include: 

Fund & Department 

020-195 
020-195 
020-295 

020-195 
020-295 

Subtotal: 
Capital Project items include: 

Fund & Department 

020-595 

Description 
Existing Lease Purchases 
Land Use I R & B Facility (final payment) 
Courthouse ESCO - Boiler 
Sheriff's Dept. Vehicle Payments 

New Lease Purchase and Purchase 
Weed Dept. Vehicle (estimated) 
Sheriff's Office New Vehicle 
Payment plus equipment (estimated) 

Description 

The following capital project items will be 
funded with Conservation Trust Fund dollars: 

• Partial Roof Repair of Ouray County 
4-H Event Center, and 

• Fairgrounds Grandstands Shoring 
and Safety Issues 

Total General Fund Capital: 

Road and Bridge Fund Capital: (040 - 895) 

Amount 

$ 46,664 
$ 26,216 
$ 22,930 

$ 5,000 

$ 7,000 
$ 107,810 

$ 40,000 

$ 147 810 

The Road and Bridge Fund , Capital Purchases and Improvements Budget consists of lease purchase payments 
for equipment, vehicles, and new equipment purchases for a total capital budget of $195,602, 

Capital Purchase and Lease Purchase items include: 

Fund & Department 

040-895 

040-895 

Description 

Existing Lease Purchases 
4 x 4 Cab & Chassis and Backhoe 

New Lease Purchases 
Estimated new lease purchases for the 
following equipment 

• (2) Water Tanks 
• (1) Tractor 
• (1) Pickup (reg, cab & chassis) 
• (1) Roller 

Amount 

$ 20,602 

$ 50,000 

Subtotal: $ 70,602 

Capital project items include: 

Fund and Department Description 

040-895 County Road 1 Repair and Drainage Work $125,000 

Total Road and Bridge Fund Capital: $195602 
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Beginning in 2003, a Road and Bridge Impact Fees Fund was established for the deposit of impact fees collected at the 
bui lding permit stage . The creation of this fund enabled the segregation of these dollars to be used specifically for capital 
facilities to serve new development. Such capita l faci lities expenditures include capital equipment lease purchase payments 
and capital road improvements. tn 2011, $100,000 wi ll be transferred from this fund to the Road and Bridge Fund to be used 
for County Road 1 repairs and drainage work. 

It is important to note that the demands of road improvements and maintenance continue to far exceed the resources of the 
County with the current avai lable funds. Passage of the 1 % sales tax for Road and Bridge has allowed the Road and Bridge 
Department to alleviate some of its resource shortfalls in order to crush more aggregate, assist with capital purchases and 
leases, improve road surfaces , and hire an additional 1.5 FTE. The amounts utilized for 2009, 2010, and appropriated for 2011 
from the Road and Bridge Sales Tax Fund are as follows: 

2009: $299,397 2010: $435,000 2011 : $475,000 

EMS Fund Capitat: (800·295) 
The EMS Fund Capital Budget consists of a lease purchase payment for one ambulance in the amount of $66,257. 

Capital Lease Purchase items include: 

Department & Fund 

800·295 
Subtotal 

Capita l project items include: 

Department & Fund 

Description 

Existing Lease Purchase 
2007 Ambulance purchased in 2009 

Description 

800·295 Extrication Equipment 
Total EMS Fund Capital: 

Amount 

$ 27,607 
$ 27,607 

$ 38,650 
$ 66257 

The EMS Fund was created in 2005 as a result of a voter·approved mill levy to fund emergency medical services. 
Commencing in 2007, the fund was able to accumulate and establish three months of emergency reserves as per policy 
adopted by the Board of County Commissioners. 

Social Services Fund (050) : 

The Social Services Budget increased slightly for the 2010 budget year and increased again for the 2011 budget year. Due to 
the economic conditions , the department has seen increased human services needs particularly in the food benefits area. 
Increased human services activities have caused the department to exceed budgeted expenditures for a second year utilizing 
its fund balance and other State and Federal funds to meet expenses in order to provide the much needed services. A 
supplemental appropriations resolution was adopted to amend the budget for 2010. The department continues to provide well· 
needed services to the communities and citizens of Ouray County and has been served well by its Director and staff. 

Special Grant Fund (690): 

The Special Grant Fund is being utilized for grants that are not General Fund, Road and Bridge Fund, EMS Fund, or Public 
Health Fund related . In 2010, the fund was used to manage the CDOT Enhancement Grant (wi ldlife ramps and fencing), which 
later was fu lly funded by the Federal Government with ARRA dollars in the amount of $166,666. 

Grant funded projects for 2010 are listed below: 
• Voyager Grant: 
• Wild life Mitigation Project: 

(A long eight miles of Highway 550 via ARRA funding) 

Grants funded projects for 2011 are listed below: 
• Voyager Grant: 

13 

$ 75,000 
$166,666 

$241 666 

$ 31 812 



Public Access Group (PAG) Fund (860): 

A separate fund was established in 2008 to begin the segregation and accounting of grant and donation dollars 
received and expended on behalf of the Public Access Group (pAG). The PAG consists of multi-agency partners 
inclusive of Ouray County, United States Forest Service, Bureau of Land Management, Ouray Trail Group, 
Thunder Mountain Wheelers, Uncompahgre Valley Trail Riders, Western Slope Four Wheelers , and Ouray 
County Historical Society. The purpose of PAG is "to preserve public access on existing and historical public trails 
and roads for the future use and enjoyment of al/ citizens, users and visitors." The PAG is currently working on a 
project funded by a State of Colorado Trails Grant. A project coordinator is working diligently with PAG members, 
Board of County Commissioners, Staff and the public to complete the scope of work . The County has asked for 
an extension of the grant from December, 31, 2011 to May, 31 , 2012. 

Road and Bridge Sales Tax Fund (870): 

A new fund was created in 2009, entitled the "Road and Bridge Sales Tax Fund" (Fund 870) . This fund was 
created to segregate the collection of the 1 % sales tax passed exclusively for Road and Bridge by the electorate 
in the 2008 General Election . These monies are collected and placed in this fund for efficiency of use, tracking , 
and accountability. Funding has and will be transferred from this fund to the Road and Bridge Fund (Fund 040) 
annually, as appropriated by the Board of County Commissioners. Transfers from the Road and Bridge Sales Tax 
Fund to the Road and Bridge Fund have occurred as follows: $299,397 in 2009 and $435,000 in 2010. In the 
2011 budget, $475,000 has been appropriated by the Board for transfer to the Road and Bridge Fund to help 
offset the cost of providing services, funding capital purchases and leases, crushing additional aggregate, and 
improving road surfaces. 

Public Health Fund (890) 

A new fund was created in 2010 for the Public Health Department to segregate public health dollars and its 
associated programs pursuant to SB 08-194 and C.RS. 25-1-511 (2). Monies are appropriated from the County 
General Fund, and are received from State and Federal governmental agencies, grants, gifts, donations, and from 
client services fees for public health services. Approximately 50% of the revenue supporting the Public Health 
Fund is transferred from the General Fund. The Public Health Department provides an essential service to the 
communities and citizens of Ouray County. 

Contingency Fund (030): 

This fund contains a balance of $174,882 to meet the TABOR contingency requirement. TABOR requires that the 
county retain 3% of the prior year's operating expenses for emergencies. These dollars are designated in a fund 
and earmarked as part of the County's reserve dollars. 

Conclusion: 

The Board of County Commissioners and the County Administrator will continue to administer the County budget 
using a conservative approach. Adequate reserves are in place for emergency operations for the County General 
Fund, Road and Bridge Fund, and EMS Fund. Lifting of the TABOR and 5.5% limitation restrictions as approved 
by the electorate of Ouray County has preserved the mill levy for the County. This "DeBrucing" action has been 
crucial to the County's continued provision of essential public services. The Board of County Commissioners and 
County Staff have made it a practice in the past and will continue to do so into the future to seek efficiencies and 
improvements to maintain our expected and mandated level of county services. In addition, the Board of County 
Commissioners continues to seek input from Elected Officials, Department Heads, Staff and the general public 
concerning the improvement of County operations and services. 

&lurk :J. JUutt 
eowrh/adntiJti6tw104 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equ ivalents 
Restricted cash 
Escrow account 
Property taxes receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 
Accounts receivab le 

OU RA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
STAT EM ENT OF NET ASSETS 

December 31, 20 10 

Governmental 
Activ ities 

$ 2,690,6 17 
302,824 

2,809,506 
478 

103,71 9 
Due from other governmental units 119,756 
Due from other funds 
Inventories 28, 129 
Capital assets, net 4,606,733 

Tota l asse ts 10,661,762 

LI AB ILIT IES 
Accounts payable 257,948 
Due to other governmental units 14,200 
Deferred revenue 2,8 14,786 
Long-tenn liabi lities 

Due more than one year: 
Leases payable 387,583 

Compensated absences 167,2 17 
Tota l liabilities 3,64 1 ,734 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets 4,219,150 
Restricted for : 

Emergenc ies 174,88 1 
Unrestricted 2,625,997 

Tota l net assets $ 7,020,028 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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Functions/ Programs 

Primary government: 
Governmental activities: 

General government 
Judicial 
Public Safety 
Heath and welfare 
Recreation and cu lture 
Public Works 

Total governmental activities 

$ 

$ 

OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Yea r Ended December 31 , 2010 

Proe:ram Revenues 
C harges for Operating Capital Grants 

Service and Grants and and 

Expenses Fees Contributions Contributions 

2,238,810 $ 555,604 $ $ 
192,7 19 

1, 170,456 140,046 
1,662,234 56,627 

211 ,575 35,568 22,373 
1,955,6 14 749,500 

7,43 1,408 $ 787,845 $ 77 1,873 $ 

General Revenues 
Taxes: 

Property taxes 
Sales taxes and miscellaneous 

Federal and state 
Miscellaneous 

Total General Revenues 

Changes in Net Assets 
Net Assets-Jan uary I 
Net Assets-Decem ber 31 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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Net (Expense) Revenue 
Primary Government 

Governmental 

Activities 

$ ( 1,683 ,206) 
( 192 ,7 19) 

( 1,030,4 10) 
(1 ,605,607) 

(153,634) 
(1,206,114) 

(5,87 1,690) 

3,433,023 
499,034 

2,038,755 
389,708 

6,360,520 

488,830 
6,531 ,198 

$ 7,020,028 



OURA Y COUNTY, CO LORADO 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
December 31, 20 10 

Socia l 
General Road and Services 

Fu nd Bridge 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash eq uivalents $ 657,544 $ 457,250 $ 
Restricted Cash 85, 168 215, 125 
Property taxes receivable 1,915,747 355,799 
Accrued interest receivab le 478 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other governmental 26,353 33,630 
Due from other funds 4,210 
Inventories 28, 129 

Tota l asse ts $ 2,689,500 $ 1.089,933 $ 

LIABILITI ES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 96,736 $ 47,924 $ 
Due to other fund s 4,2 10 
Due to other governmental units 
Deferred revenue 1,9 15,747 355,799 

Tota l liabi lit ies 2,0 12,483 407,933 

Fund ba lances: 
Reserved for : 

Trust accounts 85, 168 
Emergencies 
Inventories 28, 129 

Unreserved: 
Designated 
Undes ignated 59 1,849 653,87 1 

Total fund ba la nces 677,017 682,000 
Total liabilities and fund ba lances $ 2,~B9,50Q $ 1,089,933 $ 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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Fund 

205,071 
2,531 

116,36 1 

8 1,8 19 
30,729 

436,5 11 

81 ,030 

14,200 
12 1,64 1 
2 16,87 1 

2 19,640 
219,640 
4J6,~ 11 



Public 
Health 
Fund 

$ 36,923 

~ ~Q 92~ 

$ 10,256 

10,256 

26,667 
26,667 

~ ~6.92~ 

Other Tota l 
Governmenta l Governmenta l 

$ 

~ 

$ 

~ 

Funds Funds 

1,333,829 $ 2,690,617 
302,824 

421 ,599 2,809,506 
478 

2 1,900 103,719 
29,044 119,756 

4,210 
28, 129 

I 8QQ,~72 ~ Q,059,239 

22,002 $ 257,948 
4,2 10 

14,200 
421,599 2,8 14,786 
443,601 3,09 1,144 

85, 168 
174,881 174,881 

28, 129 

1,187,890 2,679,9 17 
1,362,771 2,968,095 
1. 80Q.~72 ~ Q 059.2~9 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVEI~NMENTAL FUND IlALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

December 31, 2010 

Total governmental fund balances 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activiti es are not financ ial resources 
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Long-term li abi lities, including bonds payable and compensated absences, 
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported 
in the funds. 

Compensated absences 

Leases payable 

Net assets of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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$ 2,968,095 

4,606,733 

(167,217) 

(387,583) 

$ 7,020,028 



OU RA Y CO UNTY, COLORADO 
STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPEN DITU R ES AND C HANGES IN FUN D BA LANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Yea r Ended December 3 1, 20 10 

Genera l Road a nd 
Fund Br idge 

REVENUES 
Property Taxes $ 2,03 1,436 $ 334,7 11 
Sa les Taxes 499,034 
I ntergovernment3 I 307,848 960,037 
Licenses and permits 15 1,394 5,777 
Charges for services 35,568 
Fees, fi nes and forfeits 38 1,063 17,370 
Miscellaneous 73 ,693 199, 102 

Tota l revenu es 3,480,036 1,5 16,997 

EXP END ITU RES 
Current: 

General government 1,863 ,473 
Judicia l 192,7 19 
Pub lic safety 640,520 
Health and welfare 45,066 
Recreation and culture 192,48 1 
Public Works 97,5 17 1,764,844 
Debt Service 95,99 1 29,435 

Capital outlay 60,450 38,965 
Tota l expendi tures 3, 188 ,2 17 1,833,244 

Excess (defi ciency) of revenues 
over ex penditures 29 1,819 (316,247) 

OTHE R FINANC ING SOU RCES (USES) 
Transfers in 88,400 499,435 
Transfers out (166, 116) (35,655) 

Tota l other fi na ncing sources (uses) (77,716) 463,780 

Net change to fund ba la nce 214, 103 147,533 

Fund ba lance, Ja nu ary I 462,9 14 534 ,467 
Prior period adjustmen ts 

Fund ba la nce, December 3 1 $ 677,017 $ 682,000 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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$ 

$ 

Soc ial 
Services 

Fund 

123, 170 

1, 139,543 

1,867 
1,264,580 

1,23 1,532 

1,231,532 

33,048 

33 ,048 

186,592 

2 19,640 



$ 

$ 

Public Other Tota l 
Hea lth Gove rnmental Governmental 
Fund Funds Funds 

$ 943,706 $ 3,433 ,023 
499,034 

11 8, 182 285,0 18 2,8 10,628 
157, 17 1 

196,673 232,24 1 
398,433 

64,62 1 50,425 389,708 
182,803 1,475,822 7,920,238 

250,365 2,113,838 
192,7 19 

504,917 1, 145,437 
3 16,252 1,592,850 

192,48 1 
1,862,36 1 

62,077 187,5 03 
9,835 109,250 

3 16,252 827, 194 7,396,439 

( 133 ,449) 648,628 523 ,799 

164,1 16 6,000 757,95 1 
(4 ,000) (552, 180) (757 ,95 1 ) 

160, 11 6 (546,180) 

26,667 102,448 523 ,799 

1,260,323 2,444,296 

26,667 $ 1,362,77 1 $ 2,968,095 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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OUllAY COUNTY, COLORADO 
RECONCILIATION OF TH E STATEMENT OF REVENU ES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANG ES 
IN FUN I> BALANCES OF GOVEltN~IENTAL FUNDS TO T HE ST An:~IENT OF ACTIVITI ES 

Year Ended Dec f mbtrJ I, 2010 

Net change in fund bala nces - lotal gonrnmental funds 

Amoun ts reported for gonrnmenlal acth'itics in the statement of activates a rc 
different because: 

Governmental funds report capital out lays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activates the cost orlhase assets is allocated over their estimated 
uscrulli vcs and reported as deprecation expense. This is the amount by which 
capita l outl ays exceeded depreciation in the ClIrrent period. 

Fixed assets current additions 
Depreciation expense 

Excess of capital outlay over depreciation 

The issuance of long-teml debt provides current resources to govemmental 
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-tenn debt consumes the 
current financial resources of the governmental funds. Nei ther transaction, 
however, has any effect on net assets. This is the amount by which issuance 
of long-tenn debt exceeded principal payments on debt in the current period. 

Loan proceeds 
Increase in accrued vacation and sick leave 
Principal payment on long-tenn debt 

Change in ncl assels of governmental funds 

$ 

$ 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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99,386 
(256,003) 

( 42,888) 
164,536 

$ 523,799 

( 156,617) 

121.648 

$ 488.830 



Cash and investments 

OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
December 31, 2010 

Treasurer's 
Agency Fund 

$ 863 ,9 12 

Due to other governments $ 863 ,9 12 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31,2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting and reporting policies of Ouray County, Colorado conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to government units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GAS B) is the accepted standard-selling 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The 
following summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in 
evaluating the County's financial statements. 

A. Reporting Entity 

Ouray County is located in western Colorado with a population of approximately 
4000. The principal town and city are Ridgway and Ouray. Ouray County is a political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado, governed by an elected three-member Board of 
County Commissioners. The County has six other elected officials; the Assessor, the 
Clerk and Recorder, the Coroner, the Sheriff, the Surveyor and the Treasurer. Ouray 
County is included in the Seventh Judicial District. An elected District Attorney for the 
District serves Montrose, Delta, Gunnison, San Miguel, Hinsdale and Ouray 
Counties. The County's General Fund accounts for all financial operating transactions 
of the offices of the elected officials and all Ouray County contributions to the 
Seventh Judicial District Attorney's office. 

Blended presented component unit. E-911 Authority serves all the citizens of the 
County for emergency telephone services. 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the 
primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund 
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
user charges for support . Likewise, the primary government is reported separately 
from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is 
financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 
1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, 
services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported as general revenues. 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31,2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (con tinued) 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds . proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds. even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds 
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund and 
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred. regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied . Grants 
and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. The County 
considers revenues to be available if they are collectible within 180 days except for 
property taxes which are considered available if they are collectible within sixty days after 
year-end. Property taxes. sales taxes. licenses. and interest associated with the current 
year are considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current year. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred. as under accrual accounting, However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded 
when payment is due. 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a 
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general 
revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and 
unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the County's policy to first 
apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical 
block grants, and then by general revenues. 

The government reports the following major governmental funds: 

• The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all 
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund. 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31,2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(continued) 

• The Road and Bridge Fund records costs related to County road and bridge 
construction and maintenance. By State law, Colorado counties are required to 
maintain a road and bridge fund . A portion of road and bridge taxes is allocated to 
cities and towns for use in their road and street activities. 

• The Social Services Fund accounts for the administration and operations of the 
County's public health and welfare system. 

• The Public Health Fund accounts for the administration and operations of the 
County's public health department. 

The government reports the following non-major governmental funds : 

• Conservation Trust Fund reflects the receipt of the County's share of Colorado 
Lottery funds and money from other sources to be used for recreation purposes 
within the County. 

• Contingent Fund reflects the accumulation and disbursement of funds set aside to 
be used as needed for unforeseen contingencies. 

• Fairgrounds Fund reflects the accumulation and disbursement of funds set aside 
to be used as needed for operation and maintenance of the fairgrounds . 

• Special Grant Administration Fund reflects receipts and disbursements of funds 
from special grants. 

• E-911 Authority reflecls receipts from service users to be used for emergency 
telephone services. 

• Road and Bridge Impact Fees Fund reflects receipts from impact fees to be used 
for road projects. 

• Samson Law Fund reflects receipt of court fees. 

• Road and Bridge 361 reflects principal and interest to be used to mainlain 
Highway 361 . 

• Public Access Group Fund reflects receipts from grants and donations to be used 
to preserve public access on existing and historical public trails and roads. 

• Road and Bridge Sales Tax Fund reflects the collection of 1 % sales tax to be used 
for additional road and bridge expenditures. 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31,2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(continued) 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to 
December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not 
conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector 
guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same 
limitation. The County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfold activity has been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are certain 
charges between the County's enterprise funds and various other functions of the 
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program 
revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants for goods, services or privileges provided , 2) operating grants and 
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. 
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as 
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues included all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services 
and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund 's principal 
ongoing operations . The principal operating revenues of the County's enterprise 
funds and internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity 

1. Cash and Investments 

The County considers cash and cash equivalents in proprietary funds to be cash on 
hand and demand depOSits. In addition, because the treasury pool is sufficiently 
liquid to permit withdrawal of cash at any time without prior notice or penalty, equity 
in the pool is also deemed to be a cash equivalent. 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31,2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (conljn .. cd) 

1. Cash and Investments 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows , the proprietary fund types consider all 
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of one year or less to be cash 
equivalents. 

2. Receivable and Payable Balances 

Significant components of receivables and payables are disaggregated in the 
financial statements. All receivables are expected to be collected within one year. 
All material payables are expected to be paid within one year with the exception of 
the amounts for the accrual for compensated absences and capital leases. 

3. Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied in December and attach as an enforceable lien on 
property as of January 1 of the following year. Taxes are payable either in two 
installments due on February 28 and June 15 or in full on April 30. The County, 
through the Ouray County Treasurer, bills and collects its own property taxes as 
well as property taxes of all other taxing authorities within the County. Taxes levied 
in 2010 for collection in 2011 are recorded in governmental funds as taxes 
receivable and deferred revenue as of December 31 , 2010 since the amount is 
measurable but not available until 2011 . An allowance for uncollectible taxes is not 
provided as the uncollectible amounts were determined to be negligible based 
upon an analysis of historical trends. 

4. Interfund Transactions 

Transactions between funds that would be treated as revenues, expenditures, or 
expenses if they involved organizations external to the County are accounted for 
as revenues, expenditures, or expenses in the funds involved. Transactions which 
constitute reimbursements of a fund for expenditures or expenses initially made 
from that fund which are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as 
expenditures or expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of the 
expenditure or expense in the fund that is reimbursed. At year end , outstanding 
balances between funds are reported as "due tolfrom other funds." Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type 
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as '· internal 
balances." These amounts are eliminated in the Total Column on the "statement 
of net assets" column. Any residual balances outstanding between "discrete 
presented component units" and the ·'primary government" are reported on a 
separate line. 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31,2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity « onlin.<d) 

5. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at cost which is determined using the first-in , first-out 
method. Inventories in most Governmental funds are recorded as expenditures 
when purchased . Inventories in the Road and Bridge Fund and are recorded as 
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

6. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant equipment, and infrastructure assets 
(e.g., roads, bridges and similar items), are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
staternents. Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial, 
individual cost of more than $5,000 and a useful life of more than one year. All 
capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual 
historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at fair market 
value at the date of donation . The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do 
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not 
capitalized . 

Depreciation on capital assets, with the exception of infrastructure, is provided on 
the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings and improvements 
Land improvements (depreciable) 
Equipment and Furniture 

20 to 50 Years 
25 to 30 Years 
5 to 7 Years 

For reporting infrastructure assets, a modified approach is allowed by GASB 34. 
This approach is in lieu of the depreciation of infrastructure assets. The County 
has elected to use this method of reporting infrastructure assets. The County must 
maintain two requirements in order to qualify to use this approach: 

1. The County must manage the eligible infrastructure assets using an asset 
management system with specific characteristics. 

2. The County must document that the eligible infrastructure assets are being 
preserved approximately at (or above) a condition level established and 
disclosed by the County. 

The County has developed and will implement an asset management system to 
measure, at least every third year by class of infrastructure asset, if the minimum 
standards are being maintained. Additional required disclosures are included as 
part of the Required Supplementary Information. 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31,2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (continncd) 

Ouray qualifies as a Phase III county as per GASB Statement 34 and has elected not 
to report infrastructure assets which were acquired and in service at January 1, 2004. 
Infrastructure assets, which were acquired during 2005, are included with other fixed 
assets and the disclosure provisions are shown below. 

At December 31 , 2010, Ouray County has recognized only one item of infrastructure, 
a chip and seal project completed in 2005. The road improvement has been recorded 
as an infrastructure addition during 2005. The following information is presented in 
regards to this asset: 

1. The Ouray County Commissioners have made the commitment to preserve and 
maintain this eligible infrastructure asset at a level of five (5) on a maintenance 
scale of one (1) to ten (10). 

2. The Ouray County Commissioners are responsible for determining the 
appropriate condition level at which th is asset is to be maintained. 

3. No depreciation expense is reported for this asset, nor is amounts capitalized in 
connection with improvements that lengthen the life of the asset, unless the 
improvement also increases the service potential of this asset. 

4. Ouray County maintains an inventory of this asset and will perform periodic 
condition assessments to establish that the specified condition level (1 above) is 
maintained. 

5. The County's estimate of the amount to be expended to preserve and maintain 
this asset, at the stated condition level, for the subsequent year (2009) is zero 
dollars. For all subsequent years, this cost will be estimated in the County's 
annual budget. 

7. Future Compensated Absences 

The personnel rules policy manual state that all vacation may accrue up to 192 
hours. Sick leave is accrued at twelve (12) days per year. Upon reSignation, 
termination, retirement or separation from retirement or separation from 
employment an employee with 20 years of employment shall be eligible for 
payment at the rate of one-forth (X) of the employee's current hourly rate for 
accumulated sick leave up to 1440 hours. 

8. Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements. Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported 
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary fund type statement of net assets. At December 31 , 2010 the only long 
term debt that Ouray County had was from the accrual of compensated absences 
and capital leases. 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31,2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (continued) 

9. Fund Equity 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund 
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by 
outside parties for use for a specific purpose. 

10. Net Assets 

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested 
in capital assets, consists of capital assets. net of accumulated depreciation. Net 
assets are reported as restricted when there are constraints placed on their use either 
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or through restrictions 
externally imposed by creditors , grantors, laws, or regulations of other governments. 

The reserve for emergencies as required by Section 20 to Article X of the Colorado 
Constitution, also known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (TABOR) is classified as 
restricted net assets on the entity-wide statements. The County, through voter 
approval, has been authorized to retain , expand, and benefit from all non-property tax 
revenues collected during 1995, and each subsequent year. 

11 . Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. 
Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

12. Contraband Proceeds 

The Colorado Contraband Forfeiture Act requires the proceeds from the seizure of 
contraband be audited although they are not subject to the appropriations process. 
During 2010, the County had no proceeds from the seizures of contraband. 

Note 2- Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

A. Budgetary Information 

Annual budgets are adopted for all funds , except agency funds, of the County. The 
Budget Office submits a proposed operating budget for the following calendar year to 
the County Commissioners prior to October 15 of each year. The budget is prepared 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The operating budget includes 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31,2010 

Note 2- Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (continued) 

A. Budgetary Information (continued) 

proposed expenditures/expenses and the anticipated revenues. As required by 
statute, public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen's comments. Prior to the levy 
of property tax, the budget is legally adopted through the passage of a budget 
adoption and appropriation resolution. 

B. Budgeted Level of Expenditures 

The budgetary control is maintained at the department level for the general fund and 
at specific fund level for all other funds. Although the budget shows various 
classifications by object and by function , the department directors are authorized to 
transfer budgeted amounts within each of the object classifications. All annual 
appropriations lapse at year end. 

For the budget to actual reporting required by state statues the proprietary funds 
present the adjustments necessary to reconcile ending net income (loss) on the 
budgetary basis to the GAAP basis net change in fund equity. 

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information reflect 
the original budget and the final amended budget. 

Note 3- Cash and Investments 

A. Deposits 

Title II , Article 10.5 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, (the Public Deposit Protection 
Act of 1989); require all public monies to be deposited in financial institutions that have 
been designated as eligible public depositories. Eligible public depositories must 
pledge eligible collateral , as promulgated by the State banking hoard, having a market 
value in excess of 102% of the aggregate uninsured public deposits. Eligible collateral 
must he held in a single financial institution collateral pool in the custody of any federal 
reserve bank or any branch thereof or of any depository trust company which is a 
member of the federal reserve system, and which is supervised by the State banking 
board. The Statutes further restrict such deposits to eligible public depositories having 
their principal offices within the State of Colorado. Collateral in the pool is considered 
to be equal to depository insurance pursuant to definitions listed in GASB Statement 
No. 40. At year end the carrying amount of the County's Primary Government's Funds 
deposits were $ 2,374,235 and the bank balance was $ 2,357 ,638. Of the bank 
balance $ 842,121 was covered by FDIC insurance. The remaining $ 1,515,517 was 
collateralized under the above referenced statute. 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

Note 3- Cash and Investments (continued) 

B. Investments 

Colorado statues specify investment instruments meeting defined rating and risk 
criteria in which local government entities may invest. Authorized investments include 
obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agency securities; 
certain international agency securities; general obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. 
local government entities; bankers' acceptances of certain banks; commercial paper; 
written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities; certain 
money market funds; guaranteed investments contracts and local government 
investment pools. The local government investment pool is the Colorado Government 
Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST) . This pooled investment vehicle was established by 
local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus funds for investment purposes. 
This pool is overseen by the State Securities Commission. COLOTRUST operate 
similarly to money market funds and each share valued at $1 .00. The investment pool 
is routinely monitored by the Colorado Division of Securities with regard to operations 
and investments. Investments consist of U.S. Treasury bills, notes and note strips, and 
repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury Notes. The designated 
custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository services in connection with the 
direct investment and withdrawal functions of each pooled investment. All securities 
owned by each pooled investment are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the 
account maintained for the custodial bank. The custodian's internal records identify 
the investments owned by each pool investor. These pools are not required to and are 
not registered with the SEC. COLOTRUST'S funds are rated AAA by Standard and 
Poor's, Fitch 's and Moody's rating services . 

Table 1 - Summary of Combined Cash and Investments Held By Primary Government 
and Component Unit 

Description 
Cash on hand 
Wells Fargo Money Market Escrow Account 
Demand deposits 
Colotrust 
Certificates of deposit and savings 
Outstanding Warrants - Social Services 

Total 

Note 4- Interfund Transactions 

Due tolDue From 

Cost 
$ 400 

50,586 
1,613,613 
1,492,107 

760,622 
(9,389) 

$ 3,907 ,939 

The County reports interfund balances between many of its funds. The sum of all 
balances presented in this table agrees with the sum of interfund balances presented in 
the balance sheets for governmental and proprietary funds. 
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December 31 , 2010 

Note 4- Interfund Transactions (continued) 

Due tolDue From (continued) 

Inter-fund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2010 were as follows: 

Transfers 

Fund 
General Fund 
Road and Bridge 

Inter-fund 
Receivable 

$ 4,210 

Inter-fund 
Payable 

$ 4,210 

Transfers are indicative of funding for various County operations and re-allocation of 
specia l revenues. The following schedule briefly summarizes the County's transfer 
activity: 

Transfers Transfers 
Fund In (Out) 
General Fund $ 88,4000 $166,116 
Conservation Trust $ 33,512 
Road and Bridge $ 499,435 $ 35,655 
Public Health $ 164, 116 $ 4,000 
Road and Bridge Impact $ 64,435 
EMS $ 6,000 $ 19,233 
Road and Bridge Sales Tax $ 435,000 

'These transfers were eliminated in the consolidation for governmental activities. 

Note 5- Capital Assets 

Governmental Activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land 
Land improvements 
Infrastructure 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and furniture 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and furniture 

Capital assets being depreciated , net 
Total governmental 

Activities capital assets 

Balance 
1/1/10 

$ 631 ,934 
741,070 

96,064 
1,469,068 

3,009,174 
3,284,811 
6,293,985 

(596,003) 
(2,403,700) 
(2,999,703) 
3,294,282 

$ 4,763,350 
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$ 

Additions 

50,586 
48,800 
99,386 

(52,517) 
(203,486) 
(256,003) 
(156,617) 

$ (156,617) 

Dispositions 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
12/31/2010 

$ 631,934 
741 ,070 

96,064 
1,469,068 

3,059,760 
3,333,611 
6,393,371 

(648,520) 
(2 ,607,186) 
(3,255,706) 

3,137,665 

$ 4,606,733 



Ouray County, Colorado 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31,2010 

Note 5- Capital Assets (continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as 
follows : 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and Recreation 
Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 

Note 6- Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term obligations 

$ 62 ,018 
85,898 
88,993 
19,094 

$ 256,003 

The County has entered into various capital leases and financed the following items: 

Land uselRoad and Bridge Facility $ 206,000 due in five annual payments of $ 46,664 including 
interest at 4.30% beginning May 26, 2007. 

2008 Toyota FJ Cruiser $ 24,402 due in five annual payments of $ 5,474 including intrest at 
3.95%, beginning June 23, 2009. 

Backhoe and 2008 Pickup Truck $ 95,645 due in five annual payments of $ 20,602, including 
interest at 3.6% beginning May 15, 2008 

2008 Toyota FJ Cruisers (2) $ 53,928 due in five annual payments of $ 11,774 including interest 
at 3.95% beginning May 15, 2008. 

Boiler $ 190,636 due in ten annual payments of $ 23,832.95, including interest at 4.5% beginning 
July 15, 2010. 

2009 Ford 450-Med Tech Ambulance $ 125,691 due in five annual payments of $ 27,606.99, 
including interest at 3.5% beginning September 1, 2009. 

2009 Chevrolet Silverado Crew Cab Pickup $ 15,753, due in 4 payments of $ 5,682.64, including 
interest at 4% beginning August 5, 2010 
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December 31 , 2010 

Note 6- Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize the above debt are as follows: 

Landuse/Road and Bridge Facility 

Principal 
2011 $ 44,740 

$ 44,740 

2008 Toyota FJ Cruiser 

Principal 
2011 $ 4,873 
2012 5,066 
201 3 5,266 
Total $ 15 205 

Backhoe and 2008 Pickup Truck 

2011 
2012 
Total 

Principal 
$ 19,195 

19,886 
$ 39 081 

2008 Toyota FJ Cruiser 

Boiler 

2011 
2012 
Total 

Principal 
$ 10,896 

11,326 
$ 22 222 

Principal 

2011 $ 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

201 9 

Interest 

$ 1,924 

$ 1,924 

Interest 
$ 601 

408 
208 

$ 1 217 

Interest 
$ 1,407 
-21.§ 
~ 

Interest 
$ 878 
~ 
~ 

Total 

$ 46,664 

$ 46,664 

Total 
$ 5,474 

5,474 
5474 

$ 16 422 

Total 
$ 20,602 

20,602 
$ 41 204 

Total 
$11,774 

11,774 
$ 23 548 

Interest Total 

16,037 $ 7,796 $ 

16,759 7,074 

17,513 6,320 

18,301 5,532 

19,125 4,708 

19,985 3,848 

20,885 2,948 

21 ,825 2,008 

22,807 1,026 

23,833 

23,833 

23,833 

23,833 

23,833 

23,833 

23,833 

23,833 

23,833 

$ 173,237 $ 41 ,260 $ 214,497 
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Note 6- Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

2009 Ford 450-Med Tech Ambulance 

Princigal 
2011 $ 24 ,900 
2012 25,772 
201 3 26 673 
Total $ ~ 

Interest 
~ 2,707 

1,835 
934 

$ 5 ~Z6 

Total 
27,607 
27,607 
27,607 

$ 88 821 

2009 Chevrolet Si lverado Crew Cab Pickup 

Principal Interest Total 

2011 $ 5,044 $ 639 $ 5,683 

2012 5,248 435 5,683 

201 3 __ .::.5,:.,;.46:..1:.... ____ 22_2_ _ __ 5-,,6_8_3_ 

Total $ 15,753 $ 1,296 $ 17,049 

The following is a summary of capita lized leases for the year ended December 31 , 2010 

Balance Balance Due Wi thin 

Governmental Activities 1/112010 Additions Reductions 12/3112010 One Year 

Capital leases 
2006 Ambulance $ 22 ,227 $ $ 22 ,227 $ 

2006 Dodge Durango 10,920 10,920 
Loboy Trailer 8,495 8,495 
Land use Building 87,636 42 ,896 44,740 44,740 

2008 Toyota FJ Cruiser 19,893 4,688 15,205 4,873 

Backhoe and 2008 Truck 57,609 18,528 39 ,081 19,195 

2008 Toyota FS Cruiser (2) 32,704 10,482 22,222 10,896 
Boiler 190 ,636 17,399 173,237 16,037 

2009 Ambulance 101,403 24,058 77,345 24 ,900 

2009 Si lverado Pickup 20 ,596 4,843 15,753 5,044 

Total $552 ,119 $ $ 164,536 $ 387,583 $ 125,685 
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December 31,2010 

Note 7- Reservations and Designations of Fund Balance 

Reservations 
Reservations of fund balance either indicate that a portion of fund balance is legally 
segregated for a specific future use or indicate that a portion of fund balance is not 
appropriable. 

Fund balances reserved for prepaid expenditures and inventories do not represent 
available, spendable resources even though they are a component of net current assets. 
Fund balances reserved for capital projects indicates the fund balance is restricted for the 
payment of sales tax distributions, open lands purchases, and major facilities construction. 
Fund balances reserved for debt service indicates the fund balance is restricted for the 
payment of debt principal and interest maturing in future years. Fund balance reserved for 
emergencies represents a 3% legal restriction pursuant to Article X, Section 20 of the 
State Constitution (Tabor Amendment) . 

Reserved fund balances consist of the following: 
December 31, 2010 

Special Revenue Funds: 
Contingent 
General Fund 
Road and Bridge 

Note 8- Retirement Plan 

$ 174,881 
85,168 
28,129 

Ouray County is a member employer of the Colorado County Officials and Employees 
Retirement Association (CCOERA) . This association was formed by Colorado State 
Statute to provide retirement benefits to employees of Colorado local governments. 
CCOERA administers two different retirement plans a 401 (a) Defined Contribution Plan 
and a 457 Deferred Compensation Plan. 

Ouray County provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees with the Colorado 
County Officials and Employees Retirement Association Retirement Plan. In a defined 
contribution plan , benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus 
investment earnings. Employees are eligible to participate one year from the date of 
employment. Elected officials are eligible to participate immediately. Participation is 
mandatory for all eligible employees and for all elected officials. Both the County and the 
employee contribute 5% of the employee's monthly base salary to the plan . Employees 
may also make additional contributions up to a maximum of 10% of compensation. 

The County's contribution for each employee (and interest allocated to the employee's 
account) is 100% vested after ten years. If an elected official fails to become re-elected, 
they immediately become fully vested . Any non-vested County contributions forfeited by 
an employee who leaves the County's employment are remitted to the County. The 
County's total payroll was $ 2,845,756 in 2010. The total payroll covered by the pension 
plan was $ 2,675,320 in 2010. The total contribution paid was $ 338,189 in 2010 (12 % of 
covered payroll) , $ 204,423 by the employees and $133,766 by the County. 
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Note 8- Retirement Plan (continued) 

The County has no liabi lity for losses under the plan. 

Complete financia l statements for the retirement plans may be obtained from the 
CCOERA, 4949 S. Syracuse St. , Suite 400, Denver, Colorado, 80237 . 

Note 9- Post Employment Benefits 

The County provides no post employment benefits to employees who retire from the 
County other than those mandated by the State and Federal governments. 

The "Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985" (COBRA) , that is 
mandated by the Federal Government, requi res that employers allow eligible employees 
the opportunity to purchase medical and dental insurance for various periods of time after 
their employment is discontinued. Ouray County complies with the Federal Statutes. 

Note 10- Noncash Program Activity 

Schedule of EBT Authorizations, Warrant Expenditures and Total Expenditures 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 

TANF 

Child Care 

Child Welfare 

Administration 

CORE Services 

IV-D Administration 

Aid 10 Need Disabled 

Old Age Pension 

Home Care Allowance 

LEAP 

General Assistance 
TANF Colleclions 

Miscellaneous 

Subtotal 

Food Assistance 
Grant Total 

Ouray County Department of Social Services 

Expenditure/Revenue Report 

County 

EST Expended 

Authorizations 

$ 22,693.10 

$ 

6,106.68 

51,411 .66 

2,222.79 

39,929.77 

13,359.62 

96,157.20 

1,573.84 

233,454.66 

356,202.34 

589,657.00 

For the Year Ended December 201 0 

State & Fed Expenditures 

Share of All By County 

Authorizations Warrant 

$ (30,529.89) $ 12,888.67 

(6,107.07) 4,919.55 

(173,380.90) 162,485.89 

(72.852.99) 141,963.97 

(285,505.66) 288,623.73 

2,543.67 (4,958.26) 

(1,778.23) 

(42, 13340) 2,221.63 

(12,691.57) 

(98,179.41 ) 2,022.21 

7,518.00 

(381.13) 

(187,469.58) 24,189.52 

(908,466.16) 641 ,874.91 

(356,202.34) 

$ (1,264,668.50) $ 641 ,874.91 
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County EST 

Authorizations 

Plus Expend 

Sy Co. Warrant 

$ 35,581.77 

11 ,026.23 

213,897.55 

141 ,963.97 

288,623.73 

(4,958.26) 

2,222.79 

42,15140 

13,359.62 

98,17941 

7,518.00 

25,763.36 

875,329.57 

356,202.34 

$ 1,231,531 .91 

Tolal 

County 
Expenditures 

$ 5,051.88 

4,919.16 

40,516.65 

69,11 0.98 

3,118.07 

(2,414.59) 

444.56 

18.00 

668.05 

7,518.00 

(381.13) 

(161.706.22) 

(33,136.59) 

$ (33,136.59) 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31,2010 

Note 10- Noncash Program Activity (continued) 

Welfare payments authorized by the Ouray County Department of Human Services. 
These County authorizations are paid by the Colorado Department of Human Services 
by QUEST debit cards or by electronic funds transfer (EFT). 

A. County share of EBT authorizations - these amounts are settled monthly by a 
reduction of State cash advances to the County. 

B. Expenditures made by County warrants or other County payment methods 

C. This represents the total cost of the welfare programs that are administered by 
Ouray County. 

D. This total matches the expenditures on the Social Services Department Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance. 

In addition to the revenue and expenditures included in the financial statements, the 
County determines eligibility for various benefits funded by Federal and State programs 
and paid electronically to the beneficiaries by the State . Amounts for 2009 are as 
follows: 

Health and Environment 
Health and Environment 
Health and Human Services 

Note 11- Budget Amendment 

WIC Food Vouchers$19,918 
VFC Vaccines 

TEFAP Commodities 4,452 

During 2010 the County amended its budget. The following is a schedule of the 
changes to the original budget: 

Fund Original Amendment Final Budget 
Budget 

General $ 3,598,668 $ $ 3,598,668 
Road and Bridge 1,837 ,288 143,391 1,980,679 
Social Services 1,028,685 235,984 1,264,669 
Public Health 328,465 328,465 
Conservation Trust 58 ,000 58,000 
Road and Bridge Sales Tax 450,300 450,300 
Special Grant 241,666 241,666 
Road and Bridge Impact Fees 65,080 65,080 
E-911 79,800 79,800 
EMS 665,666 665,666 
Samson Law Fund 5,012 5,012 
Public Access Groue 24,000 24,000 

Totals $ 8,382,630 $379,375 $ 8,762,005 
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Note 12-Risk Management 

Colorado Counties Casualty and Property Pool 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to property and casualty losses. 
The County has joined together with other Counties in the State of Colorado to form the 
Colorado Counties Casualty and Property Pool (CAPP), a public entity risk pool currenlly 
operating as a common risk management and insurance program for member counties. 
The Pool provides the County with general property, vehicle comprehensive and 
coll ision, and various liability insurance coverage. The County pays an annual 
contribution to CAPP for its property and casualty insurance coverage. The 
intergovernmental agreement of formation of CAPP provides that the pool will be 
financially self-sustaining through member contributions and additional assessments, if 
necessary, and that the Pool will purchase insurance through commercial companies for 
members' claims in excess of a specified self-insured retention , which is determined 
each policy year. 

Note 13 -Special Assessment 

On September 1, 1996, a special assessment bond for Local Improvement District No. 
1995-1 was issued. This bond does not constitute a debt or an indebtedness of Ouray 
County within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation or provision, and 
shall not be considered or held to be a general obligation of the County. No property of 
the County shall be liable to be forfeited or taken in payment of the special assessment 
bonds. 

In 1997 a special assessment bond for Local Improvement District No. 1997-1 was 
issued . This bond does not constitute a debt of an indebtedness of Ouray County within 
the meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitations or provision, and shall not be 
considered or held to be a general obligation of the County. No property of the County 
shall be liable to be forfeited or taken in payment of the special assessment bonds. 

Note 14 -Tax, Spending and Debt Limitations 

Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution , Article X, Section 20, which 
has several limitations, including revenue raising, spending abilities, and other speci fic 
requirements of state and local governments. The amendment is complex and subject to judicial 
interpretation. However, the County had made certain interpretations of the amendment's 
language in order to determine its compliance. 

The County, through voter approval, has been authorized to retain , expand and benefit from all 
non-proprietary tax revenues collected during 1995 and each subsequent year. Also, the 
County's reserve for emergencies is classified as restricted net assets and is the Contingent 
Fund. 
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OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 

GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEND ITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

Year Ended December3 1, 20 10 

Bud~eted 

REVENUES Origi nal Final Actual Variance 

Property la"<cs $ 2,065.667 $ 2,065,667 $ 2,03 1,436 $ (34,23 1 ) 

Sales ta.xes and other 5 11.500 511,500 499,034 (12,466) 

Intergovernmental 235,458 235,458 307,848 72,390 

Licenses and permits 156,100 156, 100 15 1,394 (4,706) 

Charges for services 71,500 71 ,500 35,568 (35,932) 

Fees. fines and rorfeits 367, 100 367, 100 38 1,063 13,963 

Miscellaneous 102.984 102.984 73,693 (29,291 ) 

Tota l revenues 3,5 10.309 3,5 10,309 3,480,036 (30,273) 

EXPENDITU RES 

Assessor 249,633 249,633 243,8 18 5,815 

Admi nistration oth er 165,962 165,962 162,409 3,553 

Administrator 237,008 237,008 210,564 26,444 

Board orCounty Commissioners 196,980 196,980 182,598 14,382 

Clerk and Recorder 239,438 239,438 222,288 17,150 

County Attorney 136,275 136,275 126,788 9,487 

County Coroner 35, 14 1 35, 14 1 43 ,198 (8 ,057) 

County Jai l 121 ,000 12 1,000 53 ,202 67,798 

Courthouse Security 43 ,233 43,233 40,306 2,927 

District Attorney 65,93 1 65,93 1 65,93 1 

Elections 43,970 43,970 37,365 6,605 

Employee Benefits 70.070 70,070 64, 194 5,876 

Extension Services 4,673 4,673 4,6 12 6 1 

Fairgrounds 21 1,207 211 ,207 178,374 32,833 

Information Technology 174,006 174,006 163,497 10,509 

Juveni le Diversion 12,000 12,000 12,000 

Land Use 244,804 244,804 238,842 5,962 

Maintenance of Buildings 155,040 155,040 158,078 (3 ,038) 

Public Telecommunications 4.600 4,600 3,946 654 

Public Trustee 27,203 27,203 19,0 19 8, 184 

Recreation and Cuhure 11,500 11,500 10, 161 1,339 

Sheri IT 55 1,596 55 1,596 535 ,0 12 16,584 

Social Programs 1,000 1,000 1,098 (98) 

Surveyor 3,368 3,368 2,368 1,000 

Transfer Station 1,200 1,200 770 430 

Treasurer 171,305 17 1,305 153,82 1 17,484 

Weed department 93.482 93,482 97,5 17 (4 ,035) 

Total department expenses 3.27 1,625 3.27 1,625 3,03 1,776 239,849 

Debt service payments 95,927 95,927 95,99 1 (64) 

Capilal Oullay 65.000 65,000 60,450 4,550 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 112,888 11 2,888 88,400 (24,488) 

Transfe rs out ( 166, 11 6) ( 166, 11 6) ( 166, 11 6) 

Total other financing sources and uses (53,228) (53,228) (77,716) (24,488) 

Net change to fund balance 24,529 24,529 2 14, 103 189,574 

Fund balance, January I 3 14. 145 3 14, 145 462,9 14 148.769 
Fund balance, December J I $ 338.674 $ 338,674 $ 677,0 17 $ 338,343 
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OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND 

SC HEDULE OF REVENUES, EXP ENDITUR ES AND C HANG ES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACT UAL AND BUDG ET 

Year Ended December 31 , 2010 
Budgeted 

Original Final Actual Variance 
REVENU ES 

Property taxes $ 338,729 $ 338,729 $ 334,711 $ (4,0 18) 

Intergovernmental: 
Federal shared revenues 232,309 23 2,309 232,053 (256) 
State shared revenues 627, 103 627,103 727,984 100,88 1 
State Grants 
Tota l intergovernmental revenues 859,4 12 859,4 12 960,037 100,625 

Licenses and permits 1,000 1,000 5,777 4,777 

Misce llaneous: 
Refund of expenditures 11 2,000 11 2,000 163,603 51,603 
Other J1l iscellaneous revenues 32,000 32,000 35,499 3,499 

Total miscellaneous revenues 144 ,000 144,000 199,102 55,102 

Fees 16,000 16,000 17,370 1,370 

Total revenues 1,359, 141 1,359, 14 1 1,51 6,997 157,856 

EXPENDITU RES 
Operations 1,702, 198 1,845,589 1,764,844 80,745 
Debt service 29,435 29,435 29,435 
Capi ta l outlay 70,000 70,000 38,965 3 1,035 

Tota l expenditures 1,80 1,633 1,945,024 1,833,244 111 ,780 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over ex penditures (442,492) (585,883) (316,247) 269,636 

OTH ER FINANCING SOURC ES (USES) 
Transfers in 499,435 499,435 499,435 
Transfe rs out (35,655) (35,655) (35,655) 

Total other financing so urces (uses) 463,780 463,780 463,780 

Net chan ge to fund balance 2 1,288 ( 122, I 03) 147,533 269,636 

Fund balance, January I 297,088 297,088 534,467 237,379 
Fund ba la nce, December 31 $ 3 18,376 $ 174,985 $ 682,000 $ 507,0 15 
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OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
SOC IAL SE RVICES FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEN DITURES AND C HANGES IN FUN D BALANCE 
ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

Yea r Ended December 3 1, 2010 

Budgeted 
Origina l Fin al Actual Va riance 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 123,233 $ 123, 133 $ 123, 170 $ 37 
County administration 75,000 75,000 123 ,623 48,623 
Old age pension 72,300 72,300 54,826 ( 17,474) 
Aid to the needy and disabled 1,778 1,778 
Child care 32,000 32,000 6,107 (25,893) 
Food assistance 250,000 250,000 356,202 106,202 
Child welfare 11 3,459 113,459 173,381 59,922 
Core services 25 1,588 251 ,588 285,505 33,9 17 
Leap 83,300 83 ,300 98, 179 14,879 
CSBO grant 15,000 15,000 10, 168 (4,832) 
Colorado works 28,000 28,000 30,530 2,530 
Child support 5,000 5,000 (756) (5,756) 
Miscellaneous 100 100 1,867 1,767 

Tota l revenues 1,048 ,980 1,048,880 1,264 ,580 215,700 

EXPEND ITURES 
County funded grants 25,000 25,000 15,394 9,606 
County administrat ion 100,000 100,000 14 1,964 (4 1,964) 
Old age pension 72,800 72,800 55,512 17 ,288 
Colorado works 32,000 32,000 35,582 (3 ,582) 
Aid to the needy and disabled 2,223 (2,223) 
Child care 36,000 36,000 11 ,027 24,973 
General assistance 7,500 7,500 7,5 18 ( 18) 
Leap 93,300 93,300 98, 179 (4,879) 
Child we lfare 139,059 139,059 213,897 (74,838) 
Core services 255 ,026 255,026 288,623 (33,597) 
CSBO grant 15,000 15,000 8,795 6,205 
Child support 3,000 3,000 (4,958) 7,958 
CHP + In Reach 1,574 ( 1,574) 
Food assislance 250,000 250,000 356,202 ( 106,202) 
Supplemental Budget 235,984 235,984 

Tota l expend itures 1,028,685 1,264,669 1,23 1,532 33 ,137 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 20,295 (215,789) 33,048 248,837 

Fund ba lance, Ja nuary I 153,082 153 ,082 186,592 33,510 
Prior period adj ustments 
Fund ba la nce, December 31 $ 173,377 $ (62,707) $ 2 19,640 $ 282,347 
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OURA Y COUNTY, CO LORADO 
PUBLIC HEALTH FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND C HANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACTUA L AND BUDGET 

Year Ended December 3 1, 20 10 
Budgeted 

O rigina l Fina l Actua l Variance 
REVENUES 

Intergovernmental: 
Federal shared revenues $ 7 1,8 17 $ 7 1,817 $ 88 ,847 $ 17,030 
State shared revenues 25,778 25,778 29,335 3,557 
Total intergovernmental revenues 97,595 97,595 118,182 20,587 

Misce llaneous: 
Refund of expenditures 32,502 32,502 33 ,783 1,281 
Other miscellaneous revenues 34,252 34,252 30,838 (3,414) 

Total misce llaneous revenues 66,754 66,754 64,62 1 (2, 133) 

Total revenues 164,349 164,349 182,803 18,454 

EX PENDITURES 
Publ ic Health 328,465 328,465 3 16,252 12,213 
Capital Outlay 

Tota l ex penditu res 328,465 328,465 3 16,252 12,213 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (164, 11 6) (164, 11 6) ( 133,449) 30,667 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 164, 11 6 164, 11 6 164 ,116 
Transfers out (4,000) (4,000) 

Total other fin a ncin g sources (uses) 164, 11 6 164, 11 6 160,116 (4 ,000) 

Net cha nge to fund balance 26,667 26,667 

Fund ba lance, January I 
Fu nd balance, December 31 $ $ $ 26,667 $ 26,667 
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OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
COMBIN ING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPEC IAL R EVENUE FUNDS 
December 3 1, 2010 

Conservation 
Trusl Conlingen l Fairgrounds 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 93,462 $ 174,88 1 $ 38,606 
Taxes receivable 
Due from other governmental 
Accounts receivables 

Tola l assels 93,462 174,88 1 38,606 

LIAB ILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabil it ies : 
Accounts payable $ $ $ 
Deferred revenue 

TOla l liabili lies 

Fu nd ba lances 
Reserved for: 

Emergencies 174,88 1 
Unreserved: 93,462 38,606 

Tola l fund ba la nces 93,462 174,88 1 38,606 
TOla lliabi lilies a nd fund balances $ 93,462 ~ 174,88 1 ~ 38,606 

45 

Road a nd 
Specia l Bridge 
Gran l II1l~acl 

$ 2 1,444 $ 147,85 1 

21,444 147,851 

$ $ 

2 1,444 147,851 
2 1,444 147,851 

~ 2 1,444 $ 147,851 



Emergency 
Samson E-9 11 Medica l Road and 

Law Aulhorily Services Bridge361 

$ 5, 165 $ 90,94 1 $ 465 ,759 $ 135,662 
42 1,599 

2 1,900 
5,165 90,94 1 909,258 135,662 

$ $ $ 22,002 $ 
421,599 
443 ,60 1 

5, 165 90,941 465,657 135,662 
5, 165 90,941 465,657 135,662 

$ 5, 165 $ 90,94 1 $ 909,258 $ 135,662 

45 

Public 
Access 
Group 

$ 82 

2,69 1 

2,773 

$ 

2,773 
2,773 

$ 2,773 

Road a nd 
Bridge 

Sa les Tax 

$ 159,976 

26,353 

186,329 

$ 

186,329 
186,329 

$ 186,329 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Tolal 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

1,333,829 
42 1,599 

29,044 
21,900 

1,806,372 

22,002 
42 1 ,599 
443 ,601 

174,881 
1,187,890 
1,362,77 1 
1,806,372 



OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
COM BI NING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Year Ended December 3 1, 20 10 

Conservation Specia l 
Trust Contingent Fairgrounds Grant Fund 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental 22,373 235,390 
Charges for services 
Interest earnings 255 
Misce llaneous 

Tota l revenues 22,628 235,390 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 230,707 
Public safety 

Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Total expend itures 230,707 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 22,628 4,683 

OTHER FINANC ING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer in 
Transfer out (33,5 12) 

Tota l other financing sources (uses) (33,5 12) 

Net change to fund ba lance ( 10,884) 4,683 

Fund ba lance, Ja nu ary I 104,346 174,881 38,606 16,76 1 
Fund ba lance, December 3 1 $ 93,462 $ 174,88 1 $ 38,606 $ 2 1,444 

46 

Road and 
Bridge 
I m~act 

$ 

42,175 
42,175 

422 

422 

4 1,753 

(64,435) 
(64.435) 

(22,682) 

170,533 
$ 147,851 



Total 
Emergency Public Road and Nonmajor 

Sa mson E-911 Medical Road and Access Bridge Governmental 
Law Authority Services Bridge361 Group Sa les Tax Funds 

$ $ $ 446,234 $ $ $ 497,472 $ 943,706 
1, 145 23,4 19 2,69 1 285,0 18 

56,627 140,046 196,673 
96 30 7,857 8,238 

12 42,187 
1,145 56,723 609,741 7,857 2,691 497,472 1,475 ,822 

1,079 3,233 14,924 250,365 
51,422 453,495 504,917 

9,835 9,835 
62 ,077 62,077 

1,079 51,422 525,407 3,233 14,924 827, 194 

66 5,30 1 84,334 7,857 (542) 482,548 648,628 

6,000 6,000 
( 19,233) (435 ,000) (552 ,180) 
( 13,233) (435,000) (546, 180) 

66 5,30 I 7 1,101 7,857 (542) 47,548 102,448 

5,099 85 ,640 394,556 127,805 3,3 15 138,78 1 1,260,323 
$ 5, 165 $ 90,941 $ 465,657 $ 135,662 $ 2,773 $ 186,329 $ 1,362,77 1 
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OU RAY COUNTY, CO LORADO 
CONSERV A TlON T RUST FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEND ITURES AND C HANGES IN FUND BALANC E 
ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

Year Ended December 31, 20 10 

Budgeted 
Original Fina l Actua l Variance 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 24,500 $ 24,500 $ 22,373 $ (2, 127) 
Interest income 1,500 1,500 255 (1 ,245) 

Total revenues 26,000 26,000 22,628 (3,3 72) 

EX PENDITURES 
Recreation 
Fairgrounds 

Tota l ex penditures 

Excess (defici ency) of revenues 
over expenditures 26,000 26,000 22,628 (3 ,372) 

OTHER FINANC ING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 32,000 32,000 
Transfers out (58,000) (58,000) (33,5 12) 24,488 

Net change to fnn d ba la nce ( 10,884) 2 1, 11 6 

Fund ba lance, Janu ary I 104 ,346 104,346 104,346 
Fu nd ba lance, Decembe r 31 ####### $ 104,346 $ 93,462 $ 2 1, 11 6 
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OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
CONTINGENT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND C HANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

Year Ended December 3 1, 20 10 

Budgeted 
Origi na l Fi na l Actual Variance 

REVENUES $ $ $ $ 

EXPENDITURES 

Net change to fund ba lance 

Fund ba lance, January I 174 ,881 174,88 1 174,881 

Fund balance, December 31 $ 174,881 $ 174,88 1 $ 174,88 1 $ 
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OU RA Y COUNTY, COLO RADO 
FA IRGROUNDS FUND 

SC H EDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEN DITU R ES AND C HANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACT UAL AN D BUDGET 

Yea r Ended December 3 1, 20 10 

Budgeted 
O rigin a l Fina l Actual Va riance 

REVENUES 
Misce llaneous $ $ $ $ 

EXPEN DITURES 
Recreation 
Capital o utlay (for recreation) 

Total expend itu res 

Excess (defic iency) of revenues 
ove r expenditu res 

OT H ER FINANC ING SO URCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Net change to fun d ba la nce 

Fu nd ba la nce, Ja nuary I 38,606 38,606 38,606 
Fund balance, December 3 1 $ 38,606 $ 38,606 $ 38,606 $ 
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OU RA Y CO UNTY, COLORADO 
SPEC IAL GRANT FUN D 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEN DITU RES AN D CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACT UA L AND BUDGET 

Year Ended December 31, 20 10 

Budgeted 
Origina l Fina l Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 24 1,666 $ 24 1,666 $ 235,390 $ (6,276) 

EXPENDITU R ES 
General Government 24 1,666 24 1,666 230,707 10,959 

Tota l expenditures 24 1,666 241,666 230,707 10,959 

Excess (defic iency) of revenues 
over expenditures 4,683 4,683 

OT HER FINANCING SOU RCES (USES) 
Transfers out 

Net cha nge to fund ba la nce 4,683 4,683 

Fund balan ce, January t 16,761 16,76 1 16,76 1 
Fund ba lance, December 31 $ 16,76 1 $ 16,76 1 $ 21,444 $ 4,683 
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OU RA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
ROA D AN D BRIDGE IMPACT FEES 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEND ITURES AND C HANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

Yea r Ended December 31, 20 10 

Budgetcd 
Original Fina l Actual 

REVENUES 
Va riance 

Impact rees $ 65,080 $ 65,080 $ 42, 175 $ (22,905) 

EX PEND ITU RES 
General Government 645 645 422 223 

Tota l ex penditures 645 645 422 223 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 64,435 64,435 41,753 (22,682) 

OTHER FINANCING SOU RCES (USES) 
Transfers out (64,435) (64,435) (64,435) 

Net cha nge to fund ba la nce (22,682) (22,682) 

Fund ba lance, Ja nuary 1 170,533 170,533 170,533 
Fund ba lance, Decembe r 3 1 $ 170,533 $ 170,533 $ 147,85 1 $ (22 ,682) 
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OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
E-9 11 AUTHOR ITY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

Year Ended December 31, 2010 

Budgeted 
Origin al Final Actua l Variance 

REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 56,627 $ 6,627 
Interest income 2,500 2,500 96 (2,404) 

Tota l revenues 52,500 52,500 56,723 4,223 

EXPENDITURES 
Public safety 79,800 79,800 51,422 28,378 

Total expenditures 79,800 79,800 51,422 28 ,378 

Net change to fund balance (27,300) (27,300) 5,301 32,60 1 

Fund ba lance, Janua ry I 97,830 97,830 85,640 ( 12,190) 
Fuud ba lance, December 31 $ 70,530 $ 70,530 $ 90,941 $ 20,41 1 
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OU RA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
SAMSON LAW FUN D 

SC HEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITU RES AND C HANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

Year Ended Decembe r 3 1, 20 10 

Bu dgeted 
O rigina l Fi na l Actual Va riance 

REVENUES 
State revenues $ 5,0 12 $ 5,012 $ 1, 145 $ (3,867) 

Tota l revenues 5,0 12 5,012 1,145 (3 ,867) 

EXPEN DITU RES 
General government 5,0 12 5,012 1,079 3,933 

Tota l expendi tu res 5,0 12 5,012 1,079 3,933 

Net cha nge to fund ba lance 66 66 

Fu nd bala nce, J anu a ry I 5,099 5,099 5,099 
Fund ba lance, December 31 $ 5,099 $ 5,099 $ 5, 165 $ 66 
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OURA Y COUNTY, COLORA DO 
ROAD AND BRIDGE 361 FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXP END ITUR ES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

Year Ended December 31, 20 10 

Budgeted 
Original F in a l Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Interest Earnings $ $ $ 7,857 $ 7,857 

EXPEND ITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOU RCES (USES) 
Transfers out 

Net cha nge to fund balance 7,857 7,857 

Fund balance, January I 127,805 127,805 127,805 
Fund balance, December 31 $ 127 ,805 $ 127,805 $ 135,662 $ 7,857 
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OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
EMERGENCY ME DICAL SE RVICES 

SC H EDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEN DITU RES AN D CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACTUAL AND BUDG ET 

Yea r Ended December 31 , 20 10 

Budge ted 
O rigina t Final Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 449,872 $ 449,872 $ 446,234 $ (3,638) 
Intergovemmenta l 295 295 178 ( 11 7) 
Charges for services 139,200 139,200 140,046 846 
Interest income 30 30 
Grants 80,83 1 80,83 1 23,24 1 (57,590) 
Miscellaneous 12 12 

Total revenu es 670, 198 670, 198 609,74 1 (60,457) 

EXPEND ITU R ES 
Public safety 520,7 18 520,7 18 453,495 67,223 
Capital out lay 63 ,638 63,638 9,835 53,803 
Debt service payments 62,077 62,077 62,077 

Total expend itures 646,433 646,433 525,407 12 1,026 

Excess (de fi ciency) of revenues 
over expenditures 23,765 23,765 84,334 60,569 

OTHER FINANC ING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out ( 19,233) ( 19,233 ) (19,233) 
Transfers in 6,000 6,000 6,000 

Total other fin ancing sources (uses) (13,233) (13,233) (13,233) 

Net cha nge to fund ba lance 10,532 10,532 71,10 1 60,569 

Fund bala nce, Ja nuary 1 356,875 356,875 394,556 37,68 1 
Fund bala nce, December 3 1 $ 367,407 $ 367,407 $ 465,657 $ 98,250 
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OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
PUBLIC ACCESS GROUP FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

REYENUES 
Grants 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 

Net change to fund balance 

Fund balance, January t 
Fund balance, December 31 

Year Ended December 31, 2010 

Budgeted 
Original Final 

$ 24 .880 $ 24.880 

24.880 24.880 

24.000 24.000 

880 880 

3.3 15 3.315 
$ 4. 195 $ 4. 195 
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Actual Variance 

$ 2,691 $ (22 . 189) 

2,691 (22. 189) 

3.233 20,767 

(542) ( 1.422) 

3.315 
$ 2,773 $ (1,422) 



OURA Y COUNTY, COLORADO 
ROAD AND BRIDGE SALES TAX FUND 

SC HEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEN DITUR ES AND C HA NGES IN FUND BALANCE 
ACTUAL AND BUDGET 

Year Ended December 31, 2010 

Budgeted 
O riginal Fina l Actual Variance 

REVEN UES 
Sales Taxes $ 510,000 $ 5 10,000 $ 497,472 $ ( 12,528) 

EXPEND ITUR ES 15,300 15,300 14,924 376 

OTHER FINANC ING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (435,000) (435,000) (435,000) 

Net change to fund balance 59,700 59,700 47,548 ( 12,152) 

Fund balance, January I 112,43 1 11 2,43 1 138,78 1 26,350 
Fund ba la nce, December 31 $ 172,13 1 $ 172, 131 $ 186,329 $ 14, 198 
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Associates P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC A CCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

August 8, 2011 

Board of County Commissioners 
Ouray County, Colorado 

We have audited the basic financial statements of Ouray County, Colorado as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 20 I 0, and have issued our report thereon dated August 8, 20 II. These basic financial 
statements are the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibili ty is to express opinions on 
these basic financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
appli cable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic 
financial statements. An audit also includes assess ing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as we ll as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that COllectively 
comprise Ouray County, Colorado's basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizat ions, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such infonnation in that 
schedule has been subjected to the audit ing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Cott ice P. Btair, Jr., CPA, CFE 105 5.E. Fronlier. Sui te A • Cedaredge. Colorado 81413 
Phone 970/856-7550 • Fax 9700356-2122 

peteblaircpa @ya hoo,com 
www.BandACPAS.colll 

MEMBERS 
Colorado Society CPA's 

American Institute of CPA's 
Association of Certified 

Fraud Examiners 



Ouray County, Colorado 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended December 31, 20 I 0 

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Grantor / 
Program Title 

Department of Health and Human Services 
Passed through the Co lorado Department of 

Human Services 
Low Income Energy Assistance 
TANF 
IV -D Administration 
Medicaid-Tit le XIX 
CCDF 
CCDF-Discretion 
Child Welfare-IV-B 
Foster Care-IV-E 
Adoption- IV -E 
Title XX-B lock 
CCDF-ARRA 
ADAD Safe/Drug Free Schools 

Passed through Co lorado Department of Pub lic 
Health and Environment 

Public Health Emergency Preparedness 
Immunization Grants 

Department of Agricu lture 
Passed through Colorado Department of 

Human Services 
Food Ass istance-Admin 
Emergency Food Assistance Program (Admin)-ARRA 

Passed through Co lorado Department of Pub lic 
Health and Environment 

Special Supplementa l Nutrition program Women, 
Infants, and Children 
Special Supplemental Nutrition program Women, 
Infants, and Children-Non Cash 

Department of transpOltation 
Passed through Colorado Depa,tment of 
TranspOltation 

Wildlife Escape Ramps Project 

Total Federal Assistance 

CFDA 
Number 

93 .568 
93.558 
93.563 
93.778 
93.596 
93 .575 
93.645 
93.658 
93.659 
93.667 
93.713 
93.XXX 

93.069 
93.268 

10.56 1 
10.568 

10.557 

10.557 

20.205 

$ 

Expenditures 

$ 98,179 
211,099 
24,724 
15,024 
15,435 

(17,494) 
2,689 

28,433 
1,825 

24,127 
35,815 
59,212 

499,068 

48,383 
5,846 

54,229 

16,976 
4,452 

16,007 

19,918 
57,353 

162,962 

773.612 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

For the Year ended December 31, 2010 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Accounting 

The Sched ule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is not prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Expenditures are recognized when they become a demand on current available 
financial resources. 

Federal awards provided to subrec ipients are treated as expenditures when paid or distri buted to 
the subrec ipients. 

NOTE B - RE PORTING ENTITY 

The financial repOlting enti ty consists of Ouray County, Co lorado (the County) as the primary 
government ; organizat ions fo r which the County is financially accountable; and other 
organizations fo r which the nature and significance of their relat ionship with the County are such 
that exc lusion would cause the County's fi nancial statements to be mi sleading or incomplete. 

NOTE C - PASS-THROUGH AWARDS 

The County has no pass through awards 
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Associates p,c. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAl\'CIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

August 8, 20 II 

Board of County Commiss ioners 
Ouray County, Colorado 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Ouray County, Colorado as of and for the 
year ended December 3 I, 20 I 0, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated August 8, 20 II. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. 
genera lly accepted auditing standards and the standards appl icable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptro ller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal contro l over financial reporting 
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our op inion on the basic 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's 
internal contro l over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the County's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control ex ists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal contro l, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the County's financial statements wi ll not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and wou ld not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal contro l over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance aDd Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's basic financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which cou ld have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those prov isions was not an objective of our aud it, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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This reJl0l1 is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, 
management, others within the organizati on, federa l awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
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Compliance 

We have audited the compl iance of Ouray County, Colorado with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U.S Office of Management and Budget (OM B) Circular A-1 33 Compliance Supplement 
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 3 I, 20 I O. Ouray 
County, Colorado's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of 
Ouray County, Colorado's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Ouray County, 
Colorado's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard s, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circul ar A-13 3, Aud its of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-I 33 require that we 
plan and perfonm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred . An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evide nce about Ouray County, Colorado's 
compliance with those requirements and perfo rming such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does 
not provide a legal detenminati on of Ouray County, Colorado's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, Ouray County, Colorado complied, in all material respecls, with Ihe requirements referred 
to above Ihal are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended Decem ber 31, 20 I O. 
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Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Ouray County, Colorado is responsible for establishing and maintaining effec tive 
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our aud it, we considered Ouray County, 
Colorado's internal contro l over compliance with req uirements that could have a di rect and material effect 
on a major federal program in order to determi ne our auditing procedures for the purpose of express ing 
our opi nion on compliance and to test and repOlt on interna l control over compliance in accordance with 
OMB Circu lar A-1 33, but not for the purpose of express ing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's 
internal control over compliance. 

A defi ciency in internal control over com pl iance ex ists when the design or operat ion of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perfo rming their ass igned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a ti me ly basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of de fi ciencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requi rement of a federa l 
program wi ll not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a ti me ly basis . 

Our cons ideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose descri bed in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identi fy all defi ciencies in internal control over 
compli ance that might be de fi ciencies, significant defic iencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identi fy any defi ciencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material wea knesses, 
as defi ned above. 

This report is intended solely for the in formation and use of the Board of County Commissioners, 
management, others within the organi zation, and federal awardi ng agencies and pass-through enti ties and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specific parties. 
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Ouray County, Colorado 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31, 2010 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 
Type of aud itor's report issued: 
Internal contro l over financial reporting: 

Material weakness (es) identified? 
Sign ificant deficiency(ies) identified 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 
noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal Control over major programs: 
Material weakness( es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) ident ified 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 
Circular A-I33 , Section .5 1 O(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA NumberCsl 
93 .5 58 
20.205 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
TANF 
COOT-Wi ldli fe Escape Ram Project 

Unqualified Opinion 

yes X 

yes X 

yes X 

yes X 

yes 

Unqualified Opinion 

yes X 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs: $ 300,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X 
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no 

none 

no 

no 

none 

no 

no 



Ouray County, Colorado 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED 

Year cnded December 31, 2010 

SECTION II - FINDINGS UNDER GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

There are no findings under Generally Accepted Govem ment Auditing Standards. 

SECTION 111 - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS UNDER OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

There are no findings under OMB Circular A-lB. 
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Ouray Coun ty, Colorado 
SU MM ARY SCHEDULE O F PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

Yea r ended December 31 , 20 I 0 

SECTION 11- FIND INGS UNDER GENERALL Y ACCEPTED GOVERN MENT AUD ITING 
STANDARDS 

None 

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS UNDER OMB CIRCU LAR A-133 

None 
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